
IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT


FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA


SHELBY DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF:

NAME:  
ENGLAND, RODNEY BENTON

Chapter 13 No. 01-401471



  
ENGLAND, CYNTHIA GORDON

Our File No. 9917

ADDRESS:
109 WHITEROCK ROAD


GROVER, NC  28073

SSN:

--- -- 0451 & --- -- 7289

Debtors.

___________________________________________________

RODNEY BENTON ENGLAND AND WIFE,

CYNTHIA GORDON ENGLAND


         
Adversary Proc. No. 07-______
Plaintiffs,



versus







LITTON LOAN SERVICING, LP 
Defendant.




_______________________________________


COMPLAINT SEEKING DAMAGES IN ADVERSARY PROCEEDING
Introduction
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seq level7 \h \r0 1.    This is an action for actual damages, statutory damages, punitive damages, and legal fees and expenses filed by the Plaintiffs for the Defendant’s breach of a negotiated Release and Settlement Agreement, improper and illegal actions and conduct which are not in compliance with and in fact are in violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, (15 U.S.C. Section 1681), the Fair Credit Billing Act (15 U.S.C. Section 1666), the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (15 U.S.C. Section 1692), the Discharge Injunction (11 U.S.C. Section 524), and the North Carolina Unfair Debt Collections Practices Act (Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes).  
Jurisdiction
2.
Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court pursuant to the provisions of Section 1334 of Title 28 of the United Stated Code in that this proceeding arises in and is related to the above-captioned Chapter 13 case under Title 11 and concerns property of the Debtors in that case.

3.
This Court has both personal and subject matter jurisdiction to hear this case pursuant to Section 1334 of Title 28 of the United States Code, Section 157(b)(2) of Title 28 of the United States Code, and pursuant to the Order entered by the Judges of the United States District Court for the Western District of North Carolina on July 30, 1984 (the Referral Order), which Order was entered in accordance with the Bankruptcy Amendments and Federal Judgeship Act of 1984.

4.
This Court has supplemental jurisdiction to hear all state law claims pursuant to Section 1367 of Title 28 of the United States Code.

5.
This Court also has jurisdiction to hear the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act violations pursuant to Section 1692 of Title 15 of the United States Code; thus, federal subject matter jurisdiction is properly founded upon Section 1331 of Title 28 of the United States Code.

6.
This matter is primarily a core proceeding and therefore the Bankruptcy Court has jurisdiction to enter a final order.  However, in the event this case is determined not to be a core proceeding then and in that event the Plaintiffs consent to the entry of a final order by the Bankruptcy Judge.






Venue

7.
Venue lies in this District pursuant to Section 1391(b) of Title 28 of the United States Code.

Parties

8.
Plaintiffs are citizens and residents of Grover, Cleveland County, North Carolina, and are debtors under Chapter 13 of Title 11 of the United States Code.  The Plaintiffs are hereinafter referred to as the Plaintiffs or the Debtors.
9.
The Defendant, Litton Loan Servicing, LP (“Litton”) is a Limited Partnership organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business located at 1013 Centre Road, Wilmington, DE 19805.  Litton is the successor in interest to Conseco Finance Servicing Corporation (“Conseco”) pursuant to a Notice of Transfer of Claim filed in the debtors’ Chapter 13 case on December 31, 2003.  Pursuant to this Notice of Transfer, Litton became the servicer of the debtors’ loan on a 1987 Sterling Providence manufactured home bearing serial number ending in “20807” which is the subject of this action.
Facts

10.
On December 29, 1987 the Plaintiffs purchased a 1987 Sterling Providence mobile home, bearing a serial number ending in “20807” from Quality Built Homes, Inc. in Cherryville, NC for the purchase price of $26,200.00.  The loan was originally financed by All Valley Acceptance Company who transferred, sold or assigned the loan to Conseco sometime prior to the filing of the debtors’ Chapter 13 petition.


11.
On February 9, 2001, the Plaintiffs sought protection from their creditors by filing a voluntary Chapter 13 bankruptcy petition in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of North Carolina.

12.
The 341(a) meeting of creditors was held in Shelby, North Carolina on March 16, 2001.
13.
The Chapter 13 plan of the Plaintiffs was subsequently confirmed by order of this Court dated April 3, 2001.

14.  
In the schedules filed with the petition in this case and on the master mailing matrix filed with the Clerk of this Court, a secured debt was listed in favor of Conseco for the first lien on the debtors’ 1987 Sterling Providence manufactured home in the approximate amount of $16,873.44, with $5014.00 to be paid through the plan as a secured debt and $11,859.44 to be paid as an unsecured split claim.  
15.
Conseco filed an Objection to Confirmation, incorrectly identifying the subject personal property as a 1997 All Valley Services manufactured home, and identifying the serial number as “SMIINC20807.”  Conseco alleged that the value of the property was $16,309.15 and not $5014.00 as set forth in the debtors’ petition.
16.
On April 30, 2002, a Consent Order was entered in the debtors’ bankruptcy case wherein the value of the subject mobile home was set at $8500.00 to be paid as a secured claim in favor of Conseco at 10% interest.  The unsecured split claim was set on the records of the Trustee at $7996.35.

17.
The Trustee disbursed the total sum of $8500.00 plus interest in the sum of $1957.31 on the secured claim, and $2333.43 on the unsecured split claim.  The Trustee disbursed payments to Conseco until December 31, 2003 at which time the disbursements began going to Litton pursuant to the Notice of Transfer of Claim.

18.
At all times alleged herein, the Plaintiffs state that the subject debt to Litton was secured by a mobile home which was and is a 1987 Sterling Providence manufactured home bearing a serial number ending in “20807” (said serial number is otherwise not accurately identifiable at the time of the filing of this complaint).  However, Litton assigned the subject debt an account number of 8717043.


19.
On May 19, 2006, the Plaintiffs were granted a discharge of all dischargeable debts pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 524.  The Plaintiffs allege that this Discharge included the entire debt owed to Litton under the Plan on the subject mobile home.  

20.
On July 17, 2006, the Plaintiffs’ attorney sent via certified mail return receipt requested, a demand for the release of the lien on the title to the subject mobile home to Litton at 4828 Loop Central Drive, Houston, TX 77081-2226.

21.
On August 15, 2006, Litton responded with written correspondence which stated in pertinent part, “Litton Loan Servicing is in the process of releasing the lien on the property.” The said letter referenced loan number 8717043.


22.
On September 12, 2006, Litton provided the Plaintiffs with Loan Satisfaction Documents including a Lien Release and a copy of the Manufactured Home Retail Installment Sales Contract and Security Agreement.  The said Loan Satisfaction Documents referenced loan number 8717043.

23.
The Plaintiffs filed an Adversary Proceeding bearing case number 07-4025 on May 21, 2007 alleging in part that Litton had violated the Discharge Injunction, and various state and federal laws, stemming from their attempts to collect on the loan that is the subject of this action. 


24.
The Adversary Proceeding was resolved by the terms of a Release and Settlement Agreement signed by the Plaintiffs on July 16, 2007.


25.
A Notice of Voluntary Dismissal of the Adversary Proceeding was filed by the Plaintiffs on September 14, 2007 and the adversary case was closed on September 19, 2007.


26.
The Release and Settlement Agreement provided in Paragraph 2 that “Defendants will terminate any further collection efforts regarding the loan and agree that Claimants’ debt relative to the Loan has been satisfied and/or discharged in the Claimants’ Chapter 13 Bankruptcy Case.  Defendants will not take any further collection action relative to the loan.”


27.
On approximately March 6, 2008 the male debtor obtained a copy of his credit reports from the three major consumer credit reporting agencies.
28.
The subject debt to Litton is being reported as follows.  The male debtor filed a written dispute with Equifax and served a copy of the same on Litton in which he requested that the trade line be changed to eliminate the references to the “charge off” and to reflect a “0” balanced owed as required by the Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Federal Trade Commission.  The written notices were mailed by certified mail return receipt and counsel for the debtor has possession of the letters and the Postal confirmation of delivery forms.  Notwithstanding this dispute, Litton has failed and refused to change the tradeline and it is still reported as follows:

Account No.

Experian

Equifax


TransUnion
871XXXX

Charge-Off 

Bad debt & Placed

unrated or 






for collection & skip

bankrupt







CHARGED OFF ACCOUNT

29. 
At all times relevant to the allegations herein:

A.  The Defendant has substantially frustrated the discharge order entered in this case and Defendant’s conduct constitutes gross violations of the discharge injunction as provided by Section 524 of Title 11 of the United States Code and further have caused the Plaintiffs unwarranted and unnecessary time, effort and expense in seeking to enforce rights guaranteed by the Bankruptcy Code; 

B.  The Defendant knew and in fact had actual knowledge that the Plaintiffs were previously involved in bankruptcy and were therefore protected from any direct or indirect collection acts whatsoever by virtue of the Discharge Injunction provided for by Section 524 of Title 11 of the United States Code and notwithstanding such knowledge willfully failed to withdraw their erroneous credit information within the statutory time allowed by the Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 USC 1681s);

C.  The Defendant at all times relevant to the allegations in this complaint knew that the Plaintiffs were represented by an attorney in connection with their bankruptcy filing and that the underlying debt owed by the Plaintiffs was in fact a "consumer debt" as that term is defined by applicable Federal and State statutes;

D.  The Defendant intentionally failed to correct the erroneous credit information in an effort to indirectly collect a discharged debt from the Plaintiffs in direct violation of the specific provisions of Section 1681s of Title 15 of the United States Code, commonly known as the Fair Credit Reporting Act, in violation of the applicable provisions of Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes, commonly known as the Unfair Debt Collection Practices Act, in violation of the North Carolina Retail Installment Sales Act, and in violation of Section 1692 of Title 15 of the United States Code, commonly known as the Fair Debt Collections Practices Act; and
E.  The Defendant intentionally failed to correct the erroneous credit information in an effort to indirectly collect a discharged debt from the Plaintiffs in direct breach of the July 16, 2007 Settlement Agreement.
30.
The violations of the non-bankruptcy laws justify and enhance the necessity for the award of substantial and significant punitive damages in this case.

31.
As a result of these allegations the Plaintiffs are entitled to the recovery of actual damages, including emotional distress, punitive damages, statutory damages, legal fees and expenses.

32.
The Plaintiffs have engaged in numerous meetings with their attorney and members of his staff about this matter.

33.
The Defendant had an affirmative duty under Nelson v Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corp., 282 F.3d 1057 (9th Cir. 2002) to conduct a proper reinvestigation and to correct all erroneous consumer credit information after receiving notice of the order of discharge entered on May 19, 2006.  The Defendant willfully, intentionally and without any just cause failed to comply with this duty.  The receipt of the order of discharge by the Defendant constituted the receipt of a dispute with regard to the completeness and accuracy of the pre-bankruptcy information in their consumer credit reports as provided for by Section 1681i(a)(2) of Title 15 of the United States Code.

34.
The Defendant failed to cause the consumer credit reports of the Plaintiffs to be amended so as to list all debts discharged in bankruptcy has having a “0” credit balance.  The Official Staff Commentary to Section 607 of the Fair Credit Reporting Act provides as follows:  “A consumer report may include an account that was discharged in bankruptcy (as well as the bankruptcy itself), as long as it reports a zero balance due to reflect the fact that the consumer is no longer liable for the discharged debt.”  

35.
The issuance of the discharge order by this Court and the receipt of the same by Equifax, Experian and TransUnion and  the Defendant, constituted the initiation of a dispute pursuant to Section 1681i of Title 15 of the United States Code.

First Claim for Relief
(Fair Credit Reporting Act)

36.
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 32 of this complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

37.
As a result of the unlawful actions of the Defendant as alleged herein the Plaintiffs have been required to devote countless and unnecessary hours to seek to correct the erroneous information on their consumer credit report.  Upon receipt of the Discharge Order in this case the Defendant was under a statutory duty to correct, update previously reported information determined to be incomplete or inaccurate, and to report as disputed any information known to be disputed by the Plaintiffs.  The receipt of the Discharge Order in this case constituted notice pursuant to Section 1681i(a)(2) of Title 15 of the United States Code (the Fair Credit Reporting Act) that all debts previously reported as owed were no longer accurate and should be thereafter reported as having a “0” balance.

38.
The Plaintiffs have constantly worried about this situation and have feared that the Defendant had some improper motive for the improper credit reporting.  

39.
As a result of the willful and intentional violations of this statute the Plaintiffs are entitled to the recovery of actual damages, statutory damages, costs and legal fees.

Second Claim for Relief

(Unfair Deceptive Acts and Practices)


40.
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 39 of the complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

41.
The Plaintiffs are "consumers" as that term is defined by Article 2 of Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

42.
The relationship between the Plaintiffs and the Defendant arose out of a "consumer debt" as that term is defined in Article 2 of Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

43.
The Defendant was and is a "debt collector" as that term is defined by applicable provisions of Article 2 of Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

44.
Under the applicable provision of Section 75-52 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the Defendant was and is prohibited from engaging in any conduct the natural consequences of which is to oppress, harass or abuse any person.

45.
The actions and conduct of the Defendant were oppressive and abusive in violation of the applicable provisions of Article 2 of Chapter 75 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

46.
As a result thereof, the Defendant is liable to the Plaintiffs for statutory damages in the sum of no less than $2,000.00 and the payment of legal fees and expenses.

Third Claim for Relief

(Fair Debt Collection Practices Act)

47.
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 46 of this complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

48.
The actions and conduct of the Defendant in this case constitute unfair and deceptive acts and practices in violation of the provisions of Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.  The unfair acts and practice of the Defendant arose out of their willful neglect to amend, modify and correct the erroneous reporting of credit information months after entry of the Order of Discharge, and months after negotiating a Release and Settlement Agreement to resolve the prior adversary proceeding, and out of their breach of the affirmative duty to report a zero balance owed on the Plaintiffs’ account.


49.
The actions of the Defendant were intentional and designed to coerce the Plaintiffs into paying a debt that had been discharged in bankruptcy in order to “clear” the negative information from their credit history.

50.
As a result of the unfair acts and deceptive practices of the Defendant, the Plaintiffs are entitled to the recovery of actual damages, statutory damages, legal fees and expenses.

Fourth Claim for Relief
(Discharge Injunction)

51.
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

52.
The conduct of the Defendant in this case has substantially frustrated the discharge order entered in this case and has caused the Plaintiffs unwarranted and unnecessary time, effort and expense in seeking to enforce rights guaranteed by the Bankruptcy Code.

53.
In order to carry out the provision of the Code and to maintain its integrity this Court must impose actual damages, punitive damages and legal fees against the Defendant pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Code.

54.
In order to protect the Debtors who have completed their Chapter 13 plans and secured a full discharge thereunder this Court must impose sanctions against the Defendant for their misconduct in this case.

Fifth Claim for Relief
(Fair Credit Billing Act)

55
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 54 of this complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

56.
As a result of the allegations herein the Defendant has failed to comply with the applicable provisions of the Fair Credit Billing Act.

57.
The Defendant has failed to institute any reasonable investigation about the disputed information on the consumer credit report of the Plaintiffs and have improperly and unlawfully failed to correct such erroneous information.

Sixth Claim for Relief
(Breach of Settlement Agreement)

58
The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 57 of this complaint are realleged and incorporated herein by this reference.

59.
As a result of the allegations herein the Defendant has failed to comply with the terms of a negotiated Release and Settlement Agreement.

60.
The Defendant intentionally failed to correct the erroneous credit information in an effort to indirectly collect a discharged debt from the Plaintiffs in direct breach of the July 16, 2007 Settlement Agreement, which provides in Paragraph 2, “Defendants will terminate any further collection efforts regarding the loan and agree that Claimants’ debt relative to the Loan has been satisfied and/or discharged in the Claimants’ Chapter 13 Bankruptcy Case.  Defendants will not take any further collection action relative to the loan.”
61.
As a result, the Plaintiffs are entitled to the recovery of actual damages, punitive damages and legal fees.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs having set forth their claims for relief against the Defendant respectfully pray of the Court as follows:

A.
That the Plaintiffs have and recover against the Defendant a sum in excess of $5,000.00 in the form of actual damages;

B.
That the Plaintiffs have and recover against the Defendant a sum in excess of $5,000.00 in the form of punitive damages;

C.
That the Plaintiffs have and recover against the Defendant all reasonable legal fees and expenses incurred by her attorney;

D.
That the Defendant be required to pay to the Plaintiffs as an additional damage award in this case all funds received from the Chapter 13 Trustee during the pendency of the plan in this case; and

E.
That the Plaintiffs have such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

Date this the ______ day of April, 2008.
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______________________________________

O. Max Gardner III

Law Offices of O. Max Gardner III

Attorney for the Plaintiffs
N.C. State Bar No. 6164

P.O. Box 1000

Shelby, NC 28151-1000

Phone (704) 487-0616

Fax (704) 487-0619

e-mail: maxgardner@maxgardner.com

© 2009 Max Gardner’s Bankruptcy Boot Camp

